Public Document Pack



Democratic Services White Cliffs Business Park Dover Kent CT16 3PJ

 Telephone:
 (01304) 821199

 Fax:
 (01304) 872452

 DX:
 6312

 Minicom:
 (01304) 820115

 Website:
 www.dover.gov.uk

 e-mail:
 democraticservices @dover.gov.uk

05 July 2017

Dear Councillor

I am now able to enclose, for consideration at the meeting of the **SCRUTINY (POLICY AND PERFORMANCE) COMMITTEE** on Tuesday 11 July 2017 at 6.00 pm, the following reports that were unavailable when the agenda was printed.

4 **<u>MINUTES</u>** (Pages 2 - 6)

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 13 June 2017.

Yours sincerely W

Chief Executive

Minutes of the meeting of the **SCRUTINY (POLICY AND PERFORMANCE) COMMITTEE** held at the Council Offices, Whitfield on Tuesday, 13 June 2017 at 6.00 pm.

Present:

- Chairman: Councillor K Mills
- Councillors: T A Bond M I Cosin B J Glayzer J M Heron S C Manion M J Ovenden (as substitute for Councillor M J Holloway) D A Sargent
- Officers: Director of Environment and Corporate Assets Head of Museums and Tourism Team Leader – Democratic Support

19 <u>APOLOGIES</u>

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors R J Frost, M J Holloway and M Rose.

20 <u>APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS</u>

It was noted that, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 4, Councillor M J Ovenden had been appointed as substitute for Councillor M J Holloway.

21 <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

Councillor B J Glayzer declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) in the item Public Petition – More Parking Spaces at Aycliffe (Minute No. 26) by reason of his renting a garage and advised that he would be withdrawing from the meeting when that item of business was considered.

22 <u>MINUTES</u>

The Minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2017 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

23 PUBLIC SPEAKING

The Team Leader – Democratic Support advised that no members of the public had registered to speak on items on the agenda to which the public speaking protocol applied.

24 DECISIONS OF THE CABINET RELATING TO RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE SCRUTINY (POLICY AND PERFORMANCE) COMMITTEE

Members received the decisions of the Cabinet relating to recommendations made by the Committee.

RESOLVED: That the decisions be noted.

25 <u>ISSUES REFERRED TO THE COMMITTEE BY COUNCIL, CABINET, SCRUTINY</u> (COMMUNITY AND REGENERATION) COMMITTEE OR ANOTHER COMMITTEE

There were no items of business for consideration.

26 ITEMS CALLED-IN FOR SCRUTINY OR PLACED ON THE AGENDA BY A MEMBER OF THE COMMITTEE, ANY INDIVIDUAL NON-EXECUTIVE MEMBERS OR PUBLIC PETITION

Public Petition – More Parking Spaces at Aycliffe

Mr G Dodd presented the petition signed by 42 people calling for the creation of more parking spaces at Aycliffe through the widening of roads where there was the space. The current parking arrangements were considered insufficient and as a consequence this had led to vehicles being parked in such a manner that obstructions were being created and there was concern that this could affect access for emergency service vehicles. However, Mr Dodd stated that he did not wish to see restrictive parking arrangements (such as double yellow lines) introduced as this would only move the problem on to other areas.

In response to the petition, the Director of Environment and Corporate Assets advised that when the Aycliffe estate was built the demand for car parking spaces was not as high. It was suggested to Members that a report be brought back to Committee covering the following matters:

- issues of land ownership (Kent County Council, Dover District Council or Housing Revenue Account land);
- potential solutions for creating additional parking spaces; and
- the cost and feasibility of implementing the solutions for additional parking spaces.

An example of a scheme in Elvington where additional parking bays were created using housing land was cited.

The Director of Environment and Corporate Assets advised that traffic control measures would be considered as part of the design of parking spaces.

The Chairman advised Mr Dodd that he was invited to attend and speak at the meeting where the report from the Director of Environment and Corporate Assets was received.

RESOLVED: That the Director of Environment and Corporate Assets be requested to provide a report to the 12 September 2017 meeting of the Scrutiny (Policy and Performance) Committee.

(Councillor B J Glayzer declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) in Minute No. 26 (Public Petition – More Parking Spaces at Aycliffe) by reason of his renting a garage and withdrew from the meeting for the consideration of that item of business.)

27 NOTICE OF FORTHCOMING KEY DECISIONS

The Team Leader – Democratic Support presented the Notice of Forthcoming Key Decisions to the Committee for its consideration.

RESOLVED: That the Notice of Forthcoming Key Decisions be noted.

28 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME

The Team Leader – Democratic Support presented the Scrutiny Work Programme to the Committee for its consideration.

Members were advised that dates were being identified for the scrutiny of the Regent Cinema and an update on lorry parking.

RESOLVED: That the Work Programme be noted.

29 OLDSTAIRS BAY TO SANDWICH BAY BEACH MANAGEMENT PLAN

The Director of Environment and Corporate Assets presented the report on the Oldstairs Bay to Sandwich Bay Beach Management Plan.

Members were advised that the report sought approval from the Cabinet to undertake coastal protection works in the location of Oldstairs Bay to Sandwich Bay over a five year period. The cost of the work was to be grant funded by the Environment Agency.

RESOLVED: That it be recommended to Cabinet:

(a) That approval be given to undertake coastal protection works in the location of Oldstairs Bay to Sandwich Bay over a five year period, including the following works outlined in the Beach Management and Shoreline Management Plans:

- (i) Regular monitoring and annual recycling works from Oldstairs Bay to Sandwich Bay.
- (ii) Continued beach levels/surveys from Regional Coastal Monitoring Programme.
- (iii) Research and development of new sea defences at Wellington Parade and North Deal to reduce the migration of shingle.
- (b) That it be noted that the Environment Agency had approved funding for the period 2016/17 to 2020/21.

30 ACCOMMODATION CHARTER FOR DOVER DISTRICT

The Head of Museums and Tourism presented the report on the Accommodation Charter for the Dover District.

Members were advised that the current Council policy reflected the historic government one, in that Local Authorities and their Visitor Information Centres (VICs) should not work with or promote non-accredited/graded accommodation providers. However, in 2012 the Department of Culture, Media and Sport had advised that Government had changed its position, recognising changes in the ways that providers marketed their products, leaving it for the industry to determine the most appropriate arrangements.

As a consequence, the current scheme had seen a steady decline in the number of registered providers as increasingly providers opted not to seek costly accreditation/grading and instead promote themselves through alternative means. The Dover VIC had experienced problems finding sufficient accredited accommodation during the months of July and August and often had to resort to booking accredited accommodation in Shepway and Canterbury instead of good quality, but non-accredited, accommodation in the Dover District.

The proposed Accommodation Charter developed in conjunction with Visit Kent and Tourism South East would set out the basis for accepting non-accredited providers and end the exclusion of good quality non-accredited providers from accessing marketing through the Council, expanding the range of good quality local accommodation that could be offered to visitors.

There would be an appeals system to assess complaints and monitor on-line reviews of providers that were signed up to the Accommodation Charter. The Council reserved the right to withdraw any property from the Accommodation Charter as a result.

Members asked for an update on the performance of the Accommodation Charter later in the year.

RESOLVED: That it be recommended to Cabinet:

(a) That the Accommodation Charter be adopted to enable working with district wide non-graded accommodation.

- (b) That Visitor Information Centres within the District be permitted to book customers into non-graded accommodation through The Accommodation Charter.
- (c) That authority be delegated to the Head of Museums and Tourism to exclude a property from the Accommodation Standards Charter where it is considered necessary following investigation.

(Councillor T A Bond declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) by reason of his employment in the hotel industry and withdrew from the meeting for the consideration of that item of business.)

The meeting ended at 6.41 pm.